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Indepcn dent Auditor's Report

To thc Members of CASAGRAND MILLENIA PRIYATE LIN'II]'ED

Report on Audit of Financial Statements .

Opinion

Wc have audited the accompanying financial statements of CASAGRAND MILLENIA
PRMTE LIMITED ('the Company"). rvhich comprises of the Balance Shect as at March
31,2023 and the Statcment of Profit and Loss Including other comprehensivc income for the
year then ended, statcmcnt of changes in equity and statemcnt of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notos to thc furancial statcmcnts, including a summa{, of significant
accounting policies and othcr cxplanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the erplanations given to
us. drc aforesaid financial statements give the information required b-v the Companrcs AcL
2013 ('Act') in the mamrcr so required and givc a true and fair viov in confomiity rvith thc
accountirlg standards prescribcd under section 133 of the Act read widr the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and othcr accounting principles
generall.v accepted in lndia, oI the state of affairs of the Company as at N{arch 3 l, 2023. its
profiL and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flolvs for thc -vcar
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordalce rvith the standards on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of &e Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards arc further
describcd in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of thc financial statements scction of
our report. We are independent of the Companv in accordance rvith the code of ethics issued
b1' the Institutc of Chartcred Accountants of lndia together r.vith the cthical requircments that
are relcvant to our audit of the financial statcmcnts under tlte provisions of *re Act and the
rulcs there under, and rvc have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitres in accordance lvith
thcsc rcquirements and the code of Ethics. Wc believe that thc audit evidence rvc halc
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providc a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's board of dircctors is responsiblc for thc preparation of t}e othcr information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Repon including
Annexure to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
rcport thcrcon.

Our opinion on the financial statements docs not cover the othcr information and wc do not
express aniv form ofassurancc conclusion thcreon.
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In connection u,ith our audit of the financial statcments. our responsibility is to read the othcr
information and, in doing so, considcr rvhcther the othcr information is materiall-v
inconsistent lvith the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during our audit or
otheru,ise appears to bc matcrially misstated. If. based on thc rvork rvc have pcrformed. rve
conclude that thcrc is

a material misstatement of this other information; *'e are requied to report that lact. We havc
nothing to report in tJlis regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
statements.

The Compan.v's board of directors are responsible to the matters stated in section 134 (5) of
dTe Act with respcct to the preparation of thesc financial stalcments that give a lruo and fair
vierv of the financial posihon and financial performance of the CompanJ' in accordance rvith
the accounting principlcs gcncrally acccpted in India, rncluding the accounting standards
specified under scction 133 of the Act read with rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This rcsponsibility also includcs maintcnance of
adcquate accounting records in accordancc with lhe provisions of thc Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for'prcvcnting and detecting frauds and othcr irrcgularitrcs;
selcction and application of appropriate accounting policies; maliing judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent: and desigq implementation and maintenance of adequate
intemal financial conhols, tllat rvcrc opcrating cffectively for ensuring the accurac-v and
completeness of the accounting records- relevant to the preparation and presentation of thc
fmancial statcmcnt that givc a true and fair vic*' and arc free lrom matcrial misstfltemcnt.
u,hcther duc l.,o fraud or error.

ln prcpanng thc financial statements, management is responsiblc for assessing thc
Company's abiliry" to continue as a going concem, disclosing. as applicable, matlers related to
going concem and using &e going concem basis of accormting unless management eithcr
intends to liquidate &e Compary, or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to
do so.

The Board of dircctors are also responsible for oversccing the Company's financial rcporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about rvhether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material i{ individualll, or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance wi& Standards on Auditing, rve exercise professional
judgrnent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifr and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethor
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due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is su{ficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overri.de of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to desiga audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Ac! 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial confols system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate tle appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablcness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whetler a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifr our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to ceasc to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structue and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements rcpresent the underlyirg
transactions and events in a marmer that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged witl govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and otler matters tlat may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and rvhere applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter:

The comparative financial information of t.l-re Company for the year ended March 31, 2022,
and the hansition date opening balance sheet as of April 1,2021, is included in these IndAS
fmancial statements. These statements are based on the audited financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. We express an
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements, which have been restated to
comply with Ind AS. We have audited the adjustments to the comparative financial
information for the changes in Accounting Principles adopted by the Company upon
transitioning to Ind AS, as disclosed in Note No. 2.
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Report On Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the'i{rmexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a) We have souglrt and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour
knowledge and belief were necessary for fie purposes ofour audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by tl.re

Company so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books.

c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinion, *re aforesaid fmancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofdre Act.

I) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule ll ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best
ofour information and according to the explanations given to us.

i. The company has disclosed the pending litigations as at 3lst March 2023 on irc
frnancial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (i)The management has represented tha! to the best of its knowledge and belie! no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entrties ("lntermediaries"), with the undersknding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall direcfly or
indirectly lend or invest in'other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfof the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
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guarantee, secunty or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Fundirg Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
rvriting or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any mamer whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I l(e) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any Dividend during the year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(l) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books
of account using accounting software which has a feahrre of recording audit trail (edit
Iog) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April l, 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule l1(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

3. The company being a private company, the other matters to be included in the Audit
report in accordance with the requirements of section 197 ( 16) of the Act, as amended, in
respect of whether the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year
in accordance with the provisions ofsection 197 ofthc act is not applicable.

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP,
Chartered Accounta-[ts
FRN 0044945/5200037

K
RS

Place: Chennai
Date: 25-07-23

Partn
Mcm o: 0245459
U DIN: 2324-54598GXNWN293(r
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal rnd Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Casagrand Millenia Private
Limited of even date)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Ordcr, 2020 issued by the Govemmcnl
of India in terms of Section 143(l l) olthe Companies Act 2013, we report that:

(i) Propertv, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) Mainlenancc o1'proper records:

A. According to the information and explanations made available to us, the
company has generally been maintaining proper records showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of its Propert),, Plant and
Equipment.

B. According to dre information and explanations given to us and the records of
the company examined by us, there are no Intangible Assets. Therefore, clause
(i)(a)(B) ofpara 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

b) The Company has a policy to physically veri! Propery, Plant and Equipment at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases

agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements

are held in the name of the Company.

d) According to the information ald explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Propert_v,

Plant and Equipment during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination ofthe records ofthe Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) Inventories

a) The management has carried out physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals and no discrepancies were noticed on verification betrveen the physical
stocks and tle book records that were more than l0% in the aggegate ofeach class of
inventory.

b) According to the informatiog and explanations made available to us and based on our
examination of books of accounts, the company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregata, from banks or financial
institutions on tJre basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable.

(iii) Investments, Guarantee, Security, Loans or Advances by the Company:

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
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Company has made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to companies and Limited
Liability Partnerships. The aggregate amount of transaction during tire year and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to loan to holding company,
subsidiary companies and others is mentioned in the following table:

(Rs. in Million)

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
investrnents made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of thc interest has not been
stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the
repayrnents/receipts of principal interest are regular.

d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repalment of principal and payment of
interest, we are unable to comment as to whether there is anv amount which is

W

Particulars Guaraiitees
Advances in
the nature of
loan s

Aggregate amount granted /
Provided during the year: -

-Holding

- Subsidiary

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

-Fellow Subsidiaries

- Others

1060 231.09

274.33

1.5.73

Balance outstanding As at
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:-

-Holding

- Subsidiary

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

-Fellow Subsidiaries

- Others

1060

0. l2

98.34

Securitv Loans



overdue for more than 90 days.

e) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and thc loans
are repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts will arise in respect of the
loans granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act.

1) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company
has granted the loans or advances in the nature ofloans cither repayable on demand or
without specifring any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs.52l.l5 (in
Million) (100% to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during
the year).

(iv) Loan to Directors and Investment by the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanahons given to us, provision
of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investrnents, guarantees
and security have been complied witl by the Company to the exlent applicable.

(v) Deposits

According to the information and explanation made available to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 ot any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 regarding to the
deposits accepted from the public are not applicable and hence reporting urder clause
3(v) ofthe order is not applicable.

(vi) Cost Records

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained b;, the Company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Govemment for the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company's products/services and
are of the opinion tha! prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) Statutory Duties

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
undisputed statutory dues including, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authoiities by the Company, except for the dues mentioned
below.

The follorving are the arrears of outstanding a undisputed statutory dues on the last
day of financial year for a period more than six months from the date they become
payable

&



(Rs. in Million)

.,Nature of Dues .. Amount Period to which the
dues relate

Income tax act, 1961 002 2022-23

CCST Act,20l7.

SGST AcL 2017

Interest on GST 2022-23

CGST Acl, 2017.

SGST Act, 2017

Interest on GST 538 2022-23

b) There are no disputed statutory dues, hence reporting under clause 3(viii)(b) of the
order is not applicable.

(riii) Transactions not recorded in books have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in income.tax assessments.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
ofbooks of accounts, the company has not entered any transactions which is not recorded
in books and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in income-tax
assessments. Hence reporting under clauses 3(viii) of dre order is not applicable.

(ir) Repayment of Loans

a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or otler borrowings or in
payment ofinterest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the informafion and explanations given to us, the company is not
declared as "willful defaulter" by any banks or financial institutions or other lenders
and hence reporting under clauses 3(ix)(b) of the order is not applicablc.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of books of accounts, the company has availed term loans and such term
loans were applied for the purpose of which loan was obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of books of accounts, the company has raised funds on short term basis
and such funds were not utilized for long term basis.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of books of accounts, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries or joint
ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined
under the Act).

(r) Utilization of Funds

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination ofbooks of accounts, the company has not raised any moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year

W

Statute

Interest on TDS
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and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) ofthe order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of books of accounts, the company has not made any preferential
allotrnent or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year and hencc reporting under clauses 3(x)(b) of
the order is not applicable.

(xi) Reporting of Fraud

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company
or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi)(a) ofthe order is not applicable.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment and hence reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) ofthe order is not applicable.

c) We are informed that no whistleblower complaints have been received during the year
and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(rii) Nidhi Company

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to
3(xii)(c) ofthe order is not applicable.

(riii) Related Party Transactions

The company has entered into transactions with the related parties during the year and is
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards.

(riv) Internal Audit

According to the information and explanations given to us, intemal audit under section
138 of the companies act 2013 and rules framed thereunder is not applicable to the
company and hence reporting.under clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(xv) Non-cash Transactions with directors or persons connected with him

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the ycar
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the company.

(rvi) Registration rrnder Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not
applicable.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities witlout a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause
3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

c) The company is not a Core Inveshnent Companv (CIC) as defined in the regulations
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made by the Reserve Bank oflndia and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) ofthe
order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the
company does not have more than one Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence

reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) ofthe order is not applicable.

(rvii) Cash Losses

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) Resignation of Auditors

There has been no resignation of any statutory auditors during the year and hence
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

(rix) Material Uncertainty

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and ex?ected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due rvithin a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabitity or
otherwise of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xr) Schedule VII to the Companies Act,2013

The company is not mandatorily required to engage in CSR activities as per Section 135

of Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under this clause 3()oO of the order is not
applicable for the year under audit.

(rxi) Modified opinion (CARO) in other Group Companies

The reporting under paragraph 3(:cxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of
the financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said paragraph has

been included in tlre report.

For Vaithisvaran& Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
l-.RN 004494SiS200037

aj
R Sanj cc1' Kunrar

Place: Chennai
Date: 25 -07 -23

Partner
Membership No: 0245459
U Dl N : 23 245 45 9BGX11 !VN- 293 6



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Casagrand Millenia Private
Limited of even date)

1. Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

of the Companies Ac! 2013 ("the Act")
We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Casagrand Millenia
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2023 in conjunction rvith our audit of the
financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.
2. Management's Responsibility for Intcrnal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal confol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and effrcient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, tle prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Ac! 2013.

3. Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacl, ofthe
intemal financial contols s,vstem over financial reporting and t.heir operating effectiveness.
Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for ow audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls wstem over financial
reporting.

0_



4. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting pnnciples. A company's intemal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records tlat, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations ofmanagement and directors ofthe company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the fi nancial statements.

5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Iinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporling"
including the possibililv of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatemcnts due to crror or fraud ma1' occur and not bc detected. Also. projections of an-v

evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc
sr:bject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting mav become
inadequate bccause of changes in conditions, or that the degrce of compliance rvith the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

6. Opinion

In our opinioq the Company has, in all material respects, an adequatc intemal financial
controls sy-stem over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial
reporting rvere operating effectivelv as at March 31,2023, bascd on the intemal control ovcr
financial reporting criteria established by the Companl, considering thc esscntial components
of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intcmal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued $,' the I4stitute of Chartered Accountants oflndia.

For VAITHISVARAN & CO t.LP.
Chartcred Accounlants
FRN 004494SiS200037

?'
Place: Che mar
Date: 25-07 -23

R Sanj Kumar
Partncr
Membership N6l i245459
UDTN: 23245459BGXNWN2936
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Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2023

ll amornts are in Millions, unless othen!ise s

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022
As at

0l April 2021Notes

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress

Financial assets

Investments

Other financial assets

Currenl assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents

lnvestments

Loans

Othcr financial assets

Other current assets

Current tax asset (net)

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

3

4

5

7

3.31

1.80

4.3 0

I ,124.23
1.07

4.57

2.03

566.40

r.09l.4l
6.52 ___________.!_.!2q

1,804.66 2,400.99

57.1.09

10

623.84

84.85

13.'79

8.62

t,736.62

15.37

30.05

53.r4
249.62

I1.88

0.67

lt
12

l3

5

6

7

8

14

199.93

7 t.40

9.09

143.46

200.83

'1 .20

71.15

68.33

98.45

7.20

4.06

2,191.19 3,483.58 2,236.83

___2?!14 ___________$_lul 2.810.92

t5
l6

0.10
(e70.19)

0.10

66.66

0. l0
2.05

___-___1229.02r 66.76 2.15

c
)

,,i
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Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All anounls are in Millions, unless othentise sloled)

Particu lars Notes
As at

3l Nrarch 2023
As at

3l Nlarch 2022
As at

0l April 2021

Non-current liabilities
Fin.ncial liabilities

Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
'frade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Ducs to others

Other fi nancial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Liabilities lor cunent tax (net)

Placa:Chennai
Date | 25.07.2023

510.00

22.41

568.50

0.69

17

9

17

20

20

t8
t9
14

60.96

60.96 532.1t 569.t9

617.)2 713.24

9.52

164.86

t52.t7
2,974.22

62.70

0.06
129.24

0.23

2,047.35

97.93

100.18

296.49

1,9'76.03

22.69

Total liabilities

Totsl equity and liabilities

Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements l-2
As per our report ofeven date

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistBtion Number : 004494S/S200037

A

R Sanjeev Kumar
Partner

Mcrnbcrship Numbet : 245459

3 11o.,t,t 4,014.01 2,239.58

___________iJl_u ___ 1f1!!2 ___________2wil

2,201.31 ,1,613.18 ___________2,!t!2L

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
For Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
CIN : U45500TN20l9PTC 128205

l'a'
!

Arun MN
Director

DIN: 00793551

Place: Chennai
Date : 25 .07 .2023

Dorothy Thomas

Director

DINt 00729577

a
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Casagrard Millenia Private Limited
Statement ofProfit and Loss for the year ended 3l March' 2023

(All anounts arc in Millions, unless olhere ise staled)

Notes

For the year ended

3l March 2023

For the yerr ended

3l N1arch 2022

Income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other income

Total income

21

22

30

30

3l

2,30r.41

0.76

392.92

38.89

2,302.t7 431.81

Expenses

Cost ofraw materials, components and stores consumed

Construction activity expenses

(lncrease)/ decrease in stock offlats, land stock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amonization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profir(loss) before tax
( l) Cunent tax
(2) Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Income t&\ expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Earrlillgs per share

Basic, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln t)

Diluted, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln <)

As per our report ofeven date

26

27

28

29

36.56

12.5 1

1 .42

3'.7 .7 4

5.84

1.67

2.88

23

25

408.41

864.39

653.39

305.09

656.49

(626.48)

2.011.42 3{5.{9

281.15

3 8.53

13.25

86.32

21.'11

21.11

2t4.50 6,1.61

21,450

21,450

6,461

6,461

7000s/s2004494berun'lNtiongistraRctmFi

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Place : Chennai

Date : 25 .07 .2023

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of
For Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
CIN : U45500TN201gPTC128205

&

L?
..1

R Salljeev Kumar
Partner

Membership Number | 245459

Arun MN
Director
DIN: 00793551

Place : Chennai

Date i 25.07.2023

Dorothy Thomas
Director

DIN: 00729577

,.:\
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Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the yea r ended 3l Ma rch 2023
(All amounts ore in Millions, unless otheruise staled)

N. Equity share capital:

llquify shares of { l0 each

Numbers Amount
Equity shares of < l0 each issued, subscribed rnd fully paid
As at 0l April 2021

Issue of share capital
As at 3l Msrch 2022

Equity shares of ( 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 0l April2022
Issue of share capital
As at 3l Msrch 2023

b. Other equity

t0,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

______________10J00

Retained earnings

0.10

Total

As at 0l April 2021

Profit lbr the period

As at 3l March 2022

As at 0l April 2022

Profit for the period

Charge to reserves on demerger

As st 3l March 2023

As per our repon ofeven date

R Sanjeev Kumar
Partner

Membership Number : 245459

2.05

64.61

2.0s

64.6t
66.66

66.66

214.50
(1,2s1.35)

0.19

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
For Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
CIN : U45500TN2019PTC128205

Dorothy Thomrs
Director
DIN: 00729577

NI

66.66

66.66

214,50

(l,2sl.3s)
(970.19)

Place : Chennai

Dare | 25 .07 .2023

Director

DIN: 00793551

Place : Chennai

Date | 25.07.2023 o

10.000 0.10

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP
Chartered Account4ts
Firm Registration Number : 0044945/5200037

z(rn,q''e''
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Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, nless olherwise stated)

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Op€rating activities
Profit(loss) before tax

Adjuslmenls lo rcconcile ptoJil beiorc la.x to nel cashfiotos:
Depreaiation and amortisation expenses

Finance income

Dividend income

Finance costs

Working capilal adjustmenls :
( I ncrease)/decrease in trade receivables
(lncrease)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease)/decreaso in other financial assets

(lncrease)/decrease in other current assets

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase,/(decrease) in other fi nancial liability
Increase/(decrease) in other cunent liability
Cash generated from operating rctivities
Income tar (paid/refunded

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

lnvesting activities
Purchase ofpropeny, plant and equipment
Purchase of fi nancial instruments

Loan given to related parti€s

Movement in bank deposits (maturity ofmore than 3 months)

Investment in Subsidiaries

Dividend Income

Interest received

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid

Proceeds f'rom long term bonowings
Repayment oflong term borrowings

Proceeds/(repayment) from shon term borrowings

Net cash flows from/(used in) fioaocing activities
Net inarease in aash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Adjustment on Disposal of subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents at yesr etld

As per our report ofeven date

28'7.',75

1.42

(53. r 5)
(0.04)

98.82

(56.41)

596.33

(0.34)

9.',l3

23.73

128.91

(998.19)

86.32

1.67

(86.12)

(0.99)

62.03

(12.3t\
(664.37)

249.64
( r .91)

45.08

130.68

926.87

18.50
(3.41)

616.59

(7.95)

668.6,r

(2.23) 0.63

30.05

(570.70)

8.17

(s57.83)

0.99

1.2'l

525.39

(1.8e)

0.04

130.80

652.1I (1,087.12)

(83.3e)

186.42

(724.42)
(68.12)

(40.76)

(3o.so)

622.54
(68e.s r) 551.28

(2.3r)

200.83

(t27.12)

71.40

132.50

68.33

200.83

For Vaithisvaran & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration N

IehP
R Sanjeev Kumar

ullt s/s200037

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
I.'o Casagrard Millenia Privatc t,imited
C u45500TN20t 9PTC128205

Dorothy Thomas
Panner

Membership Number : 245459

Arun MN
Director
DIN: 0079355 |

Place : Chennai

Date :25.0'l .2023

Place : Chennai

Date :25.0'l .2023

Director
DIN:00729577

35.09

W
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Casagrand Millenia Private Limit€d
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless oIherwise stated)

l.Corporate information
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 25 March, 2019 under the provisions of the

Companies Act applicable in India ("Act"). The registered office is located at Devi Apartments, New No. I I I, Old No. 59 NPL,

LB Road, Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai 600041.

The Company is engaged primarily in the business ofreal estate constructions, development and other related activities in lndia.

The financial statements werc approved for issue in accordance with a resolution ofthe directors on 25 Jlly,2023

2.Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2,1 Basis of preparation

In accordance with the notification issued by the MCA, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,20l5, as amended and

presentation requirements of Division II ofSchedule III to the Companies Act,2013 (lnd AS compliant Schedule III).

The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS. The standalone

financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured

at fair values at the end ofeach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based

on the fair value ofthe consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Upto 3l March 2022, the Company prepared the

financial statements in accordance with the previous GAAP, which includes the standards notified under the Companies
(Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 and other related provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. These are the Company's first Ind
AS financial statements. The statutory date oftransition to Ind AS is lst April,202l.

2.2 Summary ofother significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities, at the end ofthe reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge ofcunent
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets ard liabilities in the balance sheet based on cunen, non-current classification.

An asset is treated as cunent when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabiliry is cunent when: at
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle Y,.
- [t is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-curent.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition ofassets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The operating cycle of the Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on the size of the project,
type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities are classified
into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into
current and noncurrent based on a period oftwelve months,

Deferred ta,\ assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to linancial statemeDts for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stqted)

(c) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost

comprises purchase price, import duties, non-refundable taxes, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly

attributable cost ofbringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any tmde discounts and rebates are deducted

in ariving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is

depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significart parts of plant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when

a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount ofthe plant and equipment as a replacement ifthe
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incuned.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it inoeases the

future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All oth€r expenses on existing property, plant and

equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expendilure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of
profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incuned.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of tim€ to get

ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as

capital advances under other non-curenl assets.

An item ofproperty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition ofthe asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is included in the income statement

when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. lndirect expenditure incuned during construction period is

capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indircct

expenditure (including bonowing costs) incuned during the construction period which is not related to the construction activity
nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.
Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on written down value method using the following useful lives estimated by the management, which
are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except certain categories ofassets whose useful life
is estimated by the management based on planned usage and technical evaluation thereon:

Assets Useful life
Buildings 60

Temporary Structures 3

10

Plant&Machinery-Civil l2-t 5
()ttice Equipment 5

Vehicles 8-r 0
Computers
Servers and network equipment 6

ture lttlngs

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining period of lease or their cstimated useful life (10 years), whichever is

shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

g



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stoted)

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets

are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

lntangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized using written down value method over a period of three years,

which is estimated by the management to be the useful life ofthe asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset and are recognized in the statement ofprofit and loss when asset is derecognized.

(f) Investment property

The Property that is held for long term rental yield or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company is

classified as an lnvestment Property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent

to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

The cost includes the cost ofreplacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects ifthe recognition criteria are

met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them

separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incuned.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incuned during construction period is

capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction activity
nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Inyestment properties are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same to the buyer. Further the entity also

derecognises investment properties when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected

from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in profit
or loss in the period ofde-recognilion.

Reclassification from /to investment property Transfers to (or from) investment property are made only when there is a change in
use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount ofthe
property transfered and they do not change the cost ofthat property for measurement or disclosure purposes

(g) lmpairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired. Ind
AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected

losses for all contmct assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the life time expected credit losses ifthe credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-Iinancial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent mdttet
transactions are taken into account, ifavailable. Ifno such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided

carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life
the revi /

("
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Casagrand Mill€nia Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for th€ year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees , unless otherwise stated)

(h) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, ifthe contract conveys the right to

control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

A contmct is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves
i. The use ofan identified asset,
ii. The ght to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset, and
iii. The right to direct the use ofthe identified asset

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date ofthe lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available

for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost ofright-of-use assets includes the amount oflease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incuned, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use

assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter ofthe lease term and the estimated useful lives ofthe assets.

If cwnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, deprecialion is calculated using the estimated useful life ofthe asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date ofthe lease, the Company r€cognises lease liabilities measuled at the present value oflease payments

to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any

lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under

residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include lhe exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be

exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, ifthe lease term reflects the Company exercising
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease

liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment ofan option to purchase the underlying asset.

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-yalue assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases oflow
value assets are recognised as expense on a straighlline basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included under Investment property.

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a shaight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease including lease
income on fair value of refundable security deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of
inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount ofthe leased asset and recognised oler
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

I



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to financial stat€m€nts for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million lndian rupees, unless otherwise slated)

(i) BoIrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing offunds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part ofthe cost ofthe respective asset. All
other bonowing costs are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifring asset when

substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

(i) Inventories
Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) dudng
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including bonowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not
directly athibutable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement of profit and

loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification lo the real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect ofunsold area (including land) ofthe real estate development projects or
cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is valued at lower ofcost and net realizable

value.
ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

iii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on FIFO

basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance under
other assets during the course of obtaining clear and marketable title, free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal title to the
Company, whereupon it is transfened to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

Land/ development rights received under joint development arrangements ('JDA') is measured at the fair value of the estimated
construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. The amount of non-
refundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assets and on the launch of the
project, the non-refundable amount is transferred as land cost to work-in-progress/ capital work in progress. Further, the amount
ofrefundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as deposits under loans.

(l) Revenue recognition
A. Revenue recognition
a. (i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control ofthe goods or services are transfened to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any,
as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes
in its statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
pofiion ofthe transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to
the customer, ifany.

Revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is
tmnsferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer ofphysical possession ofthe residential unit to the customer
i.e.., handover/ deemed handover ofthe residential units. Deemed handover ofthe rcsidential units is considered upon.intimation
tothecustomersaboutapplicationforcompletioncertificateandreceiptofsubstantialsaleconsideration.

Revenue consists ol sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified
Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly intenelated/ interdcpendent. t_
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The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of
control ofthe assel to the customer.

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the

contract in proportion ofthe percentage ofcompletion ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers to
secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received and

utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development)

Act,20l6. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any financing element

since the same arises for ieasons explained above, which is other than for provision offinance to/from the customer.

Furlher, for projects executed through joint development arrangements not being jointly controlled operations, wherein the land

owner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and in lieu of land owner
providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue

proceeds, the revenue ftom the deyelopment and transfer of constructed area./ revenue sharing arrangement in exchange of such

development rights/ land is being account€d on gross basis on launch ofthe project. Revenue is recognised over time using input
method, on the basis of the inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the

satisfaction of that performance obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents

transferred. When the fair value ofthe land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe
estimated construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transfened.

The fair value so estimated is considered as the cost of land in the computation of percentage of completion for the purpose of
revenue recognition as discussed above.

Recognition of revenue from sale of land and developmert rights:
Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognised upon transfer ofall significant risks and rewards ofownership of
such real estate/property, as per the terms ofthe contracts entered into with buyers, which generally coincides with the firming of
the sales contracts/agreements. Revenue from sale of land and development rights is only recognised when transfer of legal title
to the buyer is not a condition precedent for transfer ofsignificant risks and rewards ofownership to the buyer.

Recognition of revenue from interior works and sale ofconcrete products and scrap:
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue excludes indirect taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Recognition of revenue from maintenance and other services:

Rerenue in respect ofmaintenance services and other services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of
the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by delivering the services as per conhactual

agreed terms.

Income from Property Development:
The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise

revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contmcts for sale of residential and

commercial units as and when the conlrol is passed on to the cuslomers which is linked to the application and receipt of
occupancy certificate.

Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights:
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights as and when

the control is passed on to the customers.

L
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a. (ii) Contract balances
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services tmnsferred to the customer. If the Company

performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a

contmct asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of considemtion that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Ifa customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods

or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is

earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

a, (iii) Cost to obtain a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contmct with a customer if the Company expects to
recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it ente$ into a new contract, which are directly
related to winning the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the

customer ofthe goods or services to which the asset relatcs.

b. Lease income
The Company's policy for recognition ofrevenue from operating leases is described in note 2.2(h).

c. Share in profit/ loss of Limited Liability Partnerships ("LLPs") and partnership firm
The Company's share in profits/losses from LLPs and partnership firm, where the Company is a partner, is recognised as

income/loss in the statement of profit and loss as and when the right to receive its profiV loss share is established by the

Company in accordance with the terms of contract between the Company and the partnership entity.

B. Other Income
a. Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognised using the

effective interest rate method.

b. Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders

approve the dividend.

(m) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentati6n currency :

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the curency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates ('the functional cunency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
(lNR), which is the Company's functional and presentation cunency.

Foreign curretrcy transactions and balances

A. Initial r€cognition - Foreign cunency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign cunency at the date ofthe tmnsaction.

B. Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign cunency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.
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C. Exchange differenc€s - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign

currency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state govemed Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined

confibution schemes (collectively the 'Schemes'). The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the

Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an employee renders the related

service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of amount

paid is recognized as a liability.

Gmtuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on project

unit $edit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its
balance sheet as an asset. or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are

recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with lnd AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit
plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS

compliant Schedule III, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to
retained earnings.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the

projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the

statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet,

since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(o) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Cunent and deferred ta,r are recognized in the statement ofprofit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and defened tax are also recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

A. Curre[t income tax
Cunent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Curent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Curent tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an

uncertain tax featment. The company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most

likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution ofthe treatment.

B. Deferred income tax
Defened income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, defered tax is recognized on temporary differences at the
balance sheet dale between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting puryoses,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition ofgoodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time ofthe transaction.

Defened income tzx assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of defened income tar assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred income ta\ assets and liabilities are measured at the ta\ rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. 
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised orrtside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive

income or in equity) in correlation to the underlying tmnsaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the

Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying
amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the

Company will pay normdl ta.\ during the specified period. In the same way, Altemate Minimum Tax (AMT) is recognised for
LLP.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is

probable that an outflo\r'/ of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are

discounted using a cunent pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,

the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occunence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present

obligation that is not recognized because it is nol probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be

measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the
possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment

loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence

or non-occurence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe entity.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is

disclosed.

(q) [inancial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity instrument

ofanother entity.
Initial rccognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, trade receivable/trade payable that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction value and investment in subsidiaries are measured at costing accordance with
Ind AS 27 - separate financial statement.

Subsequent measurement : Non-deriyalive financial instruments

A, Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contmctual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a

business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows lhat are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

C, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.
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D. Debt instrumetrts at amortized cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost ifboth the following conditions arc met:
i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contmctual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measur€ment, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

(EtR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that

are an integral part ofthe EtR. The EIR amortiz tion is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

E. Investmetrt in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Inyestment in subsidiaries, joint ventur€s and associates are canied at cost. Impairment recognized, if any, is reduced from the

carrying value.

F. De.recognition of financial asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers lhe financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

G. Financial liabilities
Initial recognilion and measuremenl

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and

borrowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of tinancial liabilities depends on their classification, which

is desoibed below.

Subsequent measurement : Non-derivative Jinanciol instruments

H. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for tmding if
they are incurred for the purpose ofrepurchasing in the near term.

I. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. Gains and losses are

recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR.

The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

J. De-recognition of linancial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancclled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms ofan existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and

the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

K. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell

the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
) In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using lhe assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market pafiicipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset tzkes into account a market participant's ability to genemte economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use. L
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based

on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

L. Fair value hierarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis olthe nature,

characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(r) Cash dividend to equity holders ofthe Company
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer at the disoetion ofthe Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability
on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the

Company's Board of Directors.

(s) Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the

weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an

equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue

that have changed the number ofequity shares outstanding, without a conesponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential

equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company conside$ all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalens consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
and usage.

(u) Restatem€nt
The Company restates its financial statements and presents a opening balance sheet as at the beginning ofthe preceding period if
it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements or
reclassifies items in its financial statements that has a material effect on the information in the balance sheet at the beginning of
the preceding period.

The Company corrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue after
their discovery by (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the enor occuned; or (b) if the
error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the
earliest prior period presented.

e



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees , unless olherwise slqted)

(v) Segment reporting
In accordance with lnd AS 108 - Opemting Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified

on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it eams

revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to hansactions with any of the Company's other

components. Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the Managing Director who has been identified as the

chief operating decision maker (CODM), to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance.
Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segrnent viz'Real estate and allied activities' and as such there is no separate

reportable segment as per lnd AS 108 'Operating Segments'. The Company has operations only within India.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability, total cost

incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the financial
statements as ofand for the year ended 3l March 2023.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aff€ct the

reported balances ofrevenues, expenses, assets aJrd liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure ofcontingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material

adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

ln the process ofapplying the Company's accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and assumptions which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The key judgements, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are desuibed below. The Company based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on parameters

available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control ofthe Company. Such changes

are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

A) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significartly affect the determination ofthe amount and timing ofrevenue
frorn contracts with customers:

a. (i) Identification of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the
Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly intenelaterV interdependent. In assessing whether performance
obligations relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed area are highly interrelated/ interdependent, the Company
considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together with other
resources readily available to the cuslomer.

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract, to transler the undivided share ofland without transfer of
constructed area or transfer the constructed area without transfer ofundivided share ofland.

a. (ii) Timing ofsatisfaction of performance obligation
Revenue from sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transfened to the customer. The entity
assesses timing of transfer of conhol of such units to the customers as transfened over time if one of the fo[owing criteria are
met:

- The customer simultaneously receivesand consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the entity performs.
- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assit is created or enhanced.
- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to

payment for performance completed to date.

Ifcontrol is not transfened over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in time.
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For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators ofthe transfer of
- When the entity obtains a present dght to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers physical possession ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards ofownership ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aforesaid indicators oftransfer of control are also considered for determination of the timing ofderecognition of investment
property.

b) Accounting for revenue and land cost for projects executed through joint development arrangements ('JDA')
For projects executed through joint development arrangements, the Company has evaluated that land owners are not engaged in
the same line of business as the Company and hence has concluded that such arrangements are contracts with customers. The

revenue from the development and transfer of constructed arealrevenue sharing anangement and the conesponding land/

development rights received under JDA is measured at the fair value of the estimated construction service rendered to the land

owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. The fair value is estimated with reference to the terms of the JDA
(whether revenue share or area share) and the related cost that is allocated to discharge the obligation ofthe Company under the

JDA. Fair value of the construction is considered to be the representative fair value of the revenue transaction and land so

obtained. Such assessment is carried out at the launch ofthe real estate project and is not reassessed at each reporting period. The

management is ofthe view that the fair value method and estimates are reflective ofthe current market condition.

c) Significant financing component
For contmcts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the

contract in proportion ofthe percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments made by customers to
secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received and

utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development)
Act,2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any financing element

since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision offinance to/ftom the customer.

B. Classificatiotr of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory as below.

lnvestment property comprises land and buildings (principally office and residential properties) that are not occupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation. These building/gs are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to
be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and

commercial property that the Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction or upon
completion of construction.
Estimation ofnet realizable value for inventory and land advance

Inventory is stated at the lower ofcost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and
is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same
geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for
similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value ofmoney to the date
ofcompletion.

With respect to land inventory and land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of future cash
flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected date of
completion, the discount rate used and the estimation ofsale prices and construction costs.

t.
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(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherwise slaled)

C. Impairmetrt of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value ofan asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher

of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available

data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental

costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the

budget for the next five years and do not include restructudng activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future inv€stments that will enhance the asset's performance ofthe CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the

discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the groMh rate used for extrapolation
purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure offair value ofinvestment property recorded by the Company.

D, Defired benefit plans - Gratuity
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the yaluation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly

sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reyiewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
lndia, the management considers the interest rates of goyemment bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available

mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary

increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

E. Measurement oflinancial instruments at amortized cost

Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. The computation

of amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life
ofthe financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments.

F. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on evaluation made by the management

ofthe expected usage ofthe asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence ofthe asset. Due to the
judgements involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in future period.
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(A ll amounls are in Million Indiqn rupees, unless otherwise sloted)

G. Provision for litigations and contingencies
Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management ofthe present obligation

arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic benefits,

which involves judgements around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past eyents and measurement of the obligation

amount. Due tojudgements involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future periods.

2.4 Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued fiom time to time. On March 31 2023, MCA amended the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS l, Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting

policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods

beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
'acrounting estimates' and included amendments to lnd AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from

changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or afier 0l
April2023.
Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope ofthe initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply

to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption ofthis amendment is

annual periods beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.
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(All emounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stqted)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Computers
Furnilure

and
Fixtures

Lease Hold
lmproYemeIrts

Office
Equipment

Plant and
Machinery

Vehicles Total

Cost

As at 0l April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023

o.24

0.23

0.83

0.01

4.51

L40

0.41 3.50 0.8,t

l.l6

1.16

0.4 t 0.02

5.97

0.43

0.88 3.50 0.86 1.16 6.40

1.670.90 0.3 8 0.r 50.24

Depreciation
As at 0l April 2021

Depreciation charge for the

year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Depreciation charge for the

year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023

0.21 0.90 0.1s 1.67

0.3 5 0.67 1 .42

0.59 1.57

0.21 0.19

0.3,10.59 3.09

Net block

As at 0l April 2021

As at 3l March 2022

As at 3l March 2023

1.01

0.82

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value ofall property, plant and

equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

,1. Capital work in progress

0.24

0.23

0.29

3.50

2.60

1.93

0.83

0.46

0.27

4.51

4.30

3.31

Less than I
year

Amount in CWIP for a period of
More than 3l-l vears z--J verrs

vears
Total

As at 0l April202l
Projects in progress

Projects temporari ly suspended

Total

2.03 2.03

2.03

As at 3l March 2022

Projects in progess
Projects temporarily suspended

Total

As at 3l March 2023

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

r.80 r.80

L

1.80 80

3.50

0.38

2.03
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(A ll amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5.Investments
As at

0l April2021
Inyestments
i. Investmelts at cost

l Urquoted cquity shares (fully paid)
a) Casa Grande Propcarc Private Limited
( March 31, 2023: Nil,MaI.ch 31,2022:49,50,000, April 01, 2021:

Nil) equity shares offace value t l0/- each.

b) Casa Interior Studio Private Limited

( March 3 l, 2023: Nil,March 31,2O22i 49,99,223, April0l,202l:
Nil) equity shares of face value t l0/- each.

c) Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
( March 31, 2023: Nil,March3l,2022:24,94,990, April 0l, 2021 ;

1,197,600) equity shares of face value { l0/- each.

2. Investment itr limited liability partnership lirms
a) AAK R€alty Service LLP

49.50

49.99

566.40

0.04

566.40

0.04

Total investments at cost

Current
No[-Curreot

I 124.23

1,124.23

566.40

566.40

As at
0l April 2021

ii. Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss

Quoted Mutual Funds

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

l\Iutual Fund

TATA Mutual Fund - Growlh Fund

Total lnvestments at fair value through Profit and Loss

30.05

30.05

- |,124.23 s66.40

|,t24.23

30.05

30.05

566.40

Total IIlvestments

Current

Non-Current

Aggregate book value ofquoted inyestments
Aggregatc market value of quoted investments
Aggregale value of ullquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of ilvestmerts

,)
va

0\

As at As at
3l March 2023 31 March 2022

1024.70

1,124.19

,:-
Sorcc

I
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(A ll amouhts arc in Millions, unless olheneise staled)

6. Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated, measured at amortised cost) As at

31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Loans to relatcd party
Loan to related padies

I-oan to directors

Total loans carried at amortised cost

Current

Non-Current

7. Other linancial assets

(Measured at amodised cost)

98.45 51. r4

98.45 623.84 53.1,t

98.45 623.84

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Security deposit

Interest accrued but not due

Receivable from joint venture partners

Total financial instruments at amortised cost

Cuftent

Non-Current

8. Other assets

l.4t
'7.20

1.07

84.85

7.20

l.4l
249.62

1.09

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As rt
0l April202l

l.09

249.62

8.61 85.92 250.71

9. Deferred tax assets (net)/ Deferred tax liabilities (net)

4.04

0.02

13.'79 I 1.88

4.06 13.79 I1.88
4.06 13.',l9 I1.88

As at
0t April202l

As al
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Inventory

Gross deferred tax liabilities
377.72 499.19 318.75

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment

Uneamed revenue

JDA Liability
Non deductible expenses for ta\ purposes

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax asseu(liabilities)

10. Inyentories

377.72

0.40

277.24

39.10

0.02

499.19 318.75

0.26

281.34

195.14

0.04

316.76 416.18 318.06

(60.96) (22,411 (0.69)

As at
3l March 2023

As et
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Work-in-progress

Raw materials, components and stores

Total invcntories at the lower of cost and net realisablc value

I,7 t4.2',1

90.39

1,731.28

5.34

1,804.66 2,400.99

L

1,736.62

623.84

53.14

84.85

1.07

Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Total other asscts

Cunent

Non Curent

0.05

287.90

30.1I

2,367.66

33.33
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Notes to Financial Statements for thc year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise staled)

ll. Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good) As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l Arril 2021

Trade receivables

Receivables from other related parties

Trade receivables ageing schedule

199.93 t43.46 '11.15

199.93 143.46 71.t5

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l Aoril202l

Utrdisputed Trade Receivablcs - considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment

Cunent but not due

Less than 6 months

6months- I year

I -2 years

2-3 yeals

More than 3 yeals

Total

12. Cash and cash equivalents

154.22

38.65
'1.06

107.59

22.96

12.91

199.93 143.46 71.15

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Bulunces wilh banks:

- On cunent accounts

- Deposits with original maturity ofless than three months

Cash on hand

Total cash alld cash cquivalent

71.2',7

0. t3

200.49

0.34

68.1I

0.22

200.83

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for vaq,ing periods of between one
day and three months, depending on the immediale cash requirements ofthe Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit
rates.

13. Bank balances other than cash and cash equiyalents

71.,10 68.33

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As st
01 April 2021

ln deposits accounls:

- Original maturities more than three months and less than 12 months

In ear marked accounts:

- Balance held as margin money against guarantees given
Total other bank balance

9.09 7 .20 15.3 7

9_09 1.20 t5.37

f

55.50

15.65
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ll amounts are in Millions, nless otherwise stated)(A

14. Currelt tax asset (net)
As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Advance t&x

Provision for ta\
Total current tax (net)

15. Equity share capital

20.3r
(43.00)

8.62 C).67

(22.69) 8.62 0.67

Equity shares of{ l0 each

Number Amount
a) Authoriscd share capital
As at 0l April202l
Increase(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2022

lncrease(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2023

1,00,000 1.00

1,00,000 1.00

1.00

Rights, prefcreoces and rcstrictions attachcd to the equity shares

The Company has one class ofequity shares viz., regular equity shares.

Regular Equity shares : These equity shares are having a par value of { l0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for One vote per share held.

The dividend proposed by.the board is subject to the approyal of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Me€ting, except in case of
interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution ofall preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

b) Issucd share capital
At 0l April202l
Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 31 March 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023

10,000 0.10

r0.000 0.10

c) Paid-up share capital
At 0l April 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023

10,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

t0 0.10

Details ofshareholders holding more than 57o shares and shares held by promotors in the Company
As at

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022
No. of Shares 7o of Hold iog No. ofShares % ofHolding

Eqrity shares

Arun Mn
Dorothy Thomas

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as
Casagrand Builder Private Limited) 10,000

0%

0o/o

100%

90%

t0%

0%

9,000

1,000

As at
0l April 2021

Equity shares

Arun Mn
Dorothy Thomas

Casagrand Premier Builder Privatc Limited (Formerly knoun as
Casagrand Builder Private Limired)

9,000

r,000

t.

ofH

90v.
t0%

o%

1,00,000

10.000 0.10

\-
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(A ll amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise slaled)

Details of changes in the promotors holdings
As at

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022
As at

01 ADril 2021

16. Other equity

-9oo/o

-t0o/o

l00Yo

oo/.

0Yo

OYo

0%

0%

OYo

As at As at
3l March 2022

As at
01 Aoril202lflMa rch 2023

a) Retained earnings

Opening
Add:Additions
Less; Utilised/ tmnsfened

Closing

17. Borrowings

66.66

2t4.50
(1,251.35)

2.05

64.61

5.1I
(3.06)

(970.19) 66.66 2.05

As at
3l March 2023

As at
ll March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

A) Non-currert borowings

i) Dcbentures
Fully Secured- Non convertible redeemable debentures of Rs.500000

each

(31 March 2023 - Nil,3l Much2022 - 1076, 3l March 2021 - 1076)

Total non current borrowings

B) Current borrowings

i) Short-term borowings
Others

ii) Loan repayable on demand
From related parties

iii) Current maturity oflotrg-term loans
Debentures
Fully Secured- Non conveftible redeemable d€bentures ofRs.500OOO
(31 March 2023 - Nil,3l March 2O22 - 1076, 3l March 2021 . 1076)

Total current Borrowings

510.00 568.50

s10.00 s68.s0

0.03

6t't.09 685.24 62.'.t0

28.00

617.12 1t3.24 62.70

$.

Equity shares

Arun Mn
Dorothy Thomas

Casagmnd Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to Financial St[tements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise sloled)

S.no lender Particulars

2022 2021

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

I

IDBI
Trustship

services

Limited

l.Personal Guarcnte.€ from individual promoter and Corporate Guarentee from corporate promoter

2.Non disposal undertaking of 100% of the shareholding of the corporate promoter on a fully
diluted basis

3. First raoking pari passu charge by way ofpledge of 100% ofthe share capital ofthe company on

a fully diluted basis

4. First Exclusive charge by way of memorandum of deposit of titlc deeds in respect of the

mortegaged property

5. Second charge by way of hypothecation on cashflows in respect ofthe real estate project titled
"First city" being developed by Casagrand Milestone Private Limited and Danub Homes Private
Limited at Perumbakkam, Tamil Nadu

6. Second charge by way of hypothecation on cash flows in respect of real estate project being

developed by Casa Grande Grace P vate Limited at Thalambur , Tamil Nadu

7. Second charge by way of hypothecation on cash flows in respect of real estate project

"Boulevard" being developed by Gazy Mag Private Limited at Chikkagubbi, Karnataka

8. Second charge by way of hypothecation on cash flows in respect of real estate project "Tudor"
being developed by Casagand Millenia Private Limited at Mogappair, Tamil Nadu

Repayment :

a) The debentures are repayable in seven equal quarterly instalments commencing from 30-09-2022

b) The debenture carry IRR of 15.4% per annum.

538.00 568.50

f,

2023



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to FiDancial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All dnounts arc in Millions, unless olhervise stdled)

18. Other financial liabilities
(Carried at amortised cost)

As at As at As at
0l ADril202131 March 2023 3t March 202 2

lnterest accrued but not due

Accrued expenses

Land owner share payable

I9. Other liabilities

36.87

8.65

250.9'l

0.17

0.06

21.44

0.23

130.50

Total other financial liabilities
Cu!-rent

Non current

296.49 152.17 0.23

296.49 152.1'7 0.23

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0lA oril 202I

Advance from customers (including cancelled customer)

Statutory dues and related liabilities

Uneamed Revenue

Liability under joint development arangement

Others

103.47

20.58

1,696.49

155.34

0.15

90.40

38.50

2,069.97

775.34

0.0r

48.32

26.70

828.36

1,143.91

0.06

Total other liebilities

Current

Non current

1,976.03 2.974,22 2,017.35

t,9'76.03 ) o1n )) 2,047.35

20. Trade payables

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
01 April202l

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to others

Total trade payables

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Total trade payables

97.93

t00.18

9.52

164.86

0.06

t29.24

198.t I 174.38 t29.30

19',1.79

0.32

166.20

8.r8

123.02

6.28

198.1I 174.38 129.30

L
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Notes to Fitrancial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounls arc in Millions, unless olhentise slated)

Trade payables ageing schedule

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
Total outstandin
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding dues to others
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 yearc

More than 3 years

Total

dues of micro, small and medium erl rtses 0lA 12021

0.0689.96

7.93

0.04

9.46

0.06

97.93 9.52 0.06

85.25

11.66

2.65

0.62

153.86

10.02

0.98

t21.04
7.47

0.73

t 00.18 164.86 t29.24

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act 2006" is based on information available with the management. As certified by the management, on the amounts overdue (if
any) to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on account ofprincipal amount, interest has been accrued and will be paid to suppliers on demand

of claim, The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

21. Revenue from contracts with customers
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Revenue from real estate deyelopment

Revenue from joint development a$eement (JDA)

Total r€vetrue from contracts with customeN
India

Outside India
Total reyetrue from contracts with customers

Timing of rcvenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

Total revcnue from contracts with customeN

Other opcrating revenues

Modification income

Marketing commission

Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Total other operating reyenues

Total reYenue from operations

368.57

2r83.04 368.57

2,283.04 368.57

2,283.04

l,663.04

620.00 368.57

2,283.04 368.57

10.25

0.58

1.96

5.58

21.65

18.37 24.35

2J0l.4l 392.92

As at
3l N{arch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

Contr8ct liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Customer advances

199.93 t43.46

2,069.97

90.40

t-

|,696.49

t03.47

CoIrtract balances

1,663.04

620.00

368.57

0.61

2.09
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year elded 31 March 2023
(All amounts ore in Millions, unless otherwise slaled)

22. Other income
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Dividend income on mutual funds

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

0.04
0.67

0.05

0.76 38.89

31 March 2023 3l March 2022

0.99

3'7.89

0.01

23. Cost of raw materials, components and stores consumed

a. Raw material and componcnts cons[med
Inventory at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end ofthe year

24. Construction activity expenses

s.34

333.08
(33.33)

408.41 30s.09

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

33.33

465.4'l

(e0.3e)

Land cost

Approval, legal and liaison

Construction cost

Interest and financial charges

25. (Iucrease)/ decrease in stock of flats, land stock and work-in-progress and traded goods

830.56

33.83

l .19

3.94

643.40

7.96

864_39 656.49

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
a) Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Adjustment to opening WIP

Total opening balance

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progress

Total closing balance

c) Total difference in inyentory (a) - (b)

26. Employee benefits expense

2,367.66

2,367.66

|,'t t4.27

1,714.27

|,73t.28
9.90

t,74l.tE

2,367.66

2367.66

6s3.39 (626.48)

Salaries, wages and bonus

Staffwelfare expenses

27. Finance costs

30.33

6.23

36.56

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Interest on bonowings

Other bonowings costs

33.83

t2.51

7.96

s.84

12.51 5.84

46.34

(33.83)Less: Bonowing Cost transferred to Construction activity expenses

t-

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

13.80
(7.e6)
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28. Depreciation and amortization expense
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Depreciation oipropertv, plant and cquipment

29. Other expenses

1.42 1.67

3l Nlarch 2023 3l March 2022
Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

lnsurance

Repq i r s qnd mqi nte na nce

Buildings
Vehicles

OtheIS

Advertising and sales promotion

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Commission and brokerage fees

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)

Sotware expenses

Rent

Bank charges

Discount
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to Auditors

0.49

0.26

0.05

1.43

0.1I
3.23

9.45

9.02

1.02

0.18

0.13
'7.54

0.22

2.O3

0.95

0.27

0.08

1.28

0.06

2.20

31,74 2.88

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
As auditor:
Audit fee

In other capacity:
Other servic€s (certification fees)

30. Tax expense

0.20

0.02

0.23

0.22

3l March 2023 3l March2022
Current income tax:

Cunent income tax charge

Adjustments in respect ofcunent income tax ofprevious year

Defcrred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal oftemporary differences

i) Property, plant and equipment

ii) Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

iii) Inventory

iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Liability under joint development arangement

Inrome tax expeDse reported itr the st&tement of profit or loss

OCI Section

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements ofdefined benefit plans

Deferred tax cbarged to OCI

34.72

(0.14)

0.02

(r 21.48)

4.09

156.04

(0.22)

30.07

180.44

(281.34)

92.?6

13.25 21.11

t

t.6'7

0.03

0._23

0.36

0.23
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Reconcifiation of t!r cxpensc a[d the accountitrg prolit multiplied by India's domestic tax ratc for 31 March 2023 and 3l March 2022
3l March 2023 3t Mlrch 2022

Accounting profit before income tax
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 25.l1yo
Tax effect on account oftransition to IND AS
Defened tax effect of other non-deductible expensey(non-taxable
income)

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax
ofprior years

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

287.7 5

72.43
(37.71)

86.32

2t.73
(21.73)

38.53 21.71

73.25 21.7 t

*The Company elected to exercise the option permilled under section I I 5BAA of the Income Ta\ Act, l96l as intoduced by the Ta\ation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for lncome Tax for the year and re-measured its
Defened tax asset (or/and deferred ta\ liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
Prol'it attributable to equity holders for basic eamings ( A )

Equity Shares

Number ofshares at the beginning ofthe year

Add i shares issued during the year

Total Number ofsharcs outstanding at thc end ofthe year ( B )

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effect on EPS

Weighted avcrage number ofshares outstatrdiog during the year - Dilutcd ( C )

Earning per share of par value INR.I0 - Basic ( D = A / B ) (lr t)
Earning per share of par value INR.I0 - Dilufed (E=A/C)(lnt)

214.50

10,000

64.61

t0,000

r0,000

r0,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

21,450

21,450

r0,000

6,461

6,461

&

31. Earnings per share
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32. Fair value measuremelts
The details offair value measurement ofCompany's financial assets/liabilities are as below

Financial sssets/liabilities rneasured at FairValue through prolit/loss:

Level
As at

31 March 2023

As at As at
3l March2022 0l April 2021

Investments in quoted inyestments -mutual funds I - - 30.05

The fair value of the finanpial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no transfers between levels during the
period.

The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term investments, loans, trade
payables, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
. The quoted investments (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets.

Set out belo\,v, is a comparison by class ofthe carqring amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial instruments:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Csrryirg Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value
Finallcial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Bonowings (Non-Cunent)

Bonowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Lease liability (non-current)

71.40

9.09

9E.45

8.61

'71.40

9.09

98.45

8.61

200.83
'7.20

623.E4

8s.92

6t'7 .12

198.1l

296.49

61'7 .12

198.1I

296.49

200.83

7.20

623.84

E5.92

As at
0l April 2021

Carrying Value Fair Yalue

Financial Assets

InYestments (non-cunent)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Bomowings (Non-Cunent)

Borrowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities
Lease liabiIity (non-cunent)

566.40

68.33

ts.37
53.14

250.71

568.s0

62.70

\29.30

0.23

566.40

68.33

15.37

53.14

250.71

s68.s0

62.70

129.30

0.23

*.

510.00

7 t3.24

174.38

152.17

510.00

713.24

174.38

t52.17
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33. Capital Matrsgement

The Company's objectives ofcapital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company manages its capital
skucture and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.

.Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

.Net debt includes bonowings (non-cunent and current), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents
(including bank balances other tlan cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

As at As at As at
31 March 2023 3l March 2022 01 April2021

6t'1.12
198.1 I
296.49

631.20

129.30

0.23

t,223.24
174.38

152.17

(80.49) (208.03) (83.70)

1,031.23

0.10
(970.19)

134r.16
0.10

66.66

677.03

0.10

2.05
(970.0e)

61.14

1686.670/0

66.76

|,408.52
95.260/0

2.15

679.18

99.68%

ln order to achieye the objective of maximize shareholders value, the Company's capital management, amongsl other things, aims to ensure

that it meets financial covenants attached lo the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant
breach in meeting the financial covenants would allow the bank to call bonowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants
of above-mentioned interest-bearing borrowing.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.

34. Financial risk managemellt objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other
than cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, cr€dit dsk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oyersees the management ofthese risks
and ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are

identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair yalue of future cash flows ofa financial instrumenl will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises two t)?es ofrisk: interest rate risk and othcr price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real-estate risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31,2023, March 31,2022 al],d April 1, 2021. The

sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt.

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gatuity and other post retirement

obligations/provisions.
The below assumption has been mad€ in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risk. This is based on the

financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023,March 31,2022 and April l, 2021.

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate because of changes in Interest rate. The

entity's exposure to the risk of changes in Interest rates relates primarily to the entity's operating activities (when receivables or payables

are subject to different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

The Company is affected by the price volatility ofcertain commodities/ real estate. Its operating activities requirc the ongoing development

ofreal estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commodity/ real estate price

risk and its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market

conditions. 
I

Borrowings (non-current and current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities (cunent and non-current)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents(including balances at bank other
than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with
banks)

Net Debt (A)
Equity share capital

Other equity
Equity (B)
Equity plus net debt (C= A+B)
Gearing ratio (D = A./C)
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Interest ratG sctrsitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The

impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value ofnon-current and curent borrowings and other current and

non current financial liabilities,

Change in rate
Effect of profit

before tax

31 March 2023 +to/o 0.46

-t% (0.46)

3l March 2022 +lo/o 0.14
-t% (0.14)

01 April2021 rlo/o 0.47

-t% (0.47)

The Company invests surplus funds in liquid mutual funds. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising from uncertainties about
future values of the investment. The Company manages the equity price risk through investing surplus funds on liquid mutual funds for
short term basis.

The table below summarises the impact of inqease/decrease ofthe Net Asset Value (NAV) on the profit for the year. The analysis is based

on the assumption that the NAV price would inoease 57o and decrease by 5%o with all variable constant.

Increase/
Chauge in rate (decrease) in

profit
3l March 2023 +5o/o 0.00

-5o/o (0.00)

31 March 2022 +syo 0.05
-s% (0.0s)

01 April2021 *5o/o 0.02
-5o/o (0.02)

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk ofloss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments ifa counterparty default on its obligations. The Company's
exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets,

Other financial assets like security deposits, loans and bank deposits are mostly with employees, govemment bodies and banks and hence,

the Company does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to trade receivables/ unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teams to review the receiyables on periodic basis and to
take necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receiyables based on lifetime expected

credil loss ('ECL').

iii. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated fiom operations. The

Company believes that the cash and cash equivalents is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly no liquidity risk is

perceived.

The break-up ofcash and cash equivalents, deposits and investments is as below.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 0l April202l
Cash and cash equivalents '11.40 200.83 68.33

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9.09 7.20 15.3'l

Investments 30.05

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are based on

contractual undiscounted paym€nts

Maturity
period

3l March 2023 31 March 2022 0l April 2021

Finatrcial liabilities - current
Bonowings (cunent)

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Financial liabilities - tron current
Borrowings
Lease liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

174.38

152.17

129.30

0.23

6t'7 .12 713.24

510.00

62.'70

198.ll
296.19

-L
56 8.50Betweenl-3years

Between I - l0 years

Betweenl-3years
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35. First lime adoption
As stated in Note I & 2, the Company has prepared its first financials statements in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes oftransition
from previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101 - First Time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS l0l ), with effect from I April, 2021 ("transition date"). For the year ended 3l March 2022, the Company
had prepared its financials statements in accordance with Company's (Accounts) Rules 2014, notified under section 133 ofthe Act and other
relevant provisions ofthe Act ("previous GAAP" or "Indian GAAP").

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023 including
the comparative information the year ended3l March 2122,and I April 2021.

ln preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at I April 2021 and in presenting the comparative information for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 3l March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous
GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with
previous GAAP, and how the transition llom previous GAAP to tnd AS has affected the Company's financial position and financial
performance. There were no significant reconciling items betwe€n cash flows prepared under Ind AS other than those arising due to
reclassification ofthe previous year figur€s to conform to the current year's presentation.

OptioDal exemptiotrs availed atrd mandatory exceptiotrs
ln preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions

A. Optional exemptions availed
(i) , Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS l0l permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised
in the financial statements as at the date oftransition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the
date oftransition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets

covered by lnd AS 38 lntangible Assets and inyestment property covered by Ind AS 40 lnvestment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has

elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(ii). Irvestmellts in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Ind AS 27 requires inyestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to be recorded at cost or in accordance with Ind AS 109 in its
separate financial statements. However, Ind AS l0l provides an option to measure that inyestment at one ofthe following amounts in case

the Company decides to measure such investment at cost:

i. Cost as per Ind AS 27 or
ii. Deemed cost, which is:

a. Fair value at the entity's date oftransition to Ind AS

b. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date

The Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using deemed cost at the Previous GAAP

carrying amount at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iii). Share based payments

Ind AS l0l provides an option to not apply Ind AS 102 to liabilities arising from share-based payment transactions that were settled before

the date oftransition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to avail this exemplion and apply the requirements oflnd AS 102 to all such gants

under the ESOP plan, which are not settled as at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iv), Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS l0l provides following practical expedients when applying lnd AS I l5 retrospeclively:
(a) for completed contracts, an entity need not restate contracts that begin and end within the same annual reporting period;

(b) for completed contructs that haye variable consideration, an entity may use the transaction price at the date the contract was completed

rather than estimating variable consideration amounts in the comparative reporting periods; and

(c) for all reporting periods presented before the beginning ofthe first Ind AS reporting period, an entity need not disclose the amount ofthe

transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation of when the entity expects to recognise that amount

as revenue.

(v). Business combinations

Ind AS l0l provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively fiom the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date.

The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Use of this

exemptio; m;ans that business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated and lhe IGAAP carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities, that are (equired to be recognised under Ind AS, is their deemed cost at the date ofthe acquisition. Aff6r the date of the

acquisition, measurement is in accordance with respectiYe Ind AS. \;
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B. Mandatory exemptiors availed

Ind AS 101 also allows first-time adopters can claim mandatory exceptions to be applied for retrospective application ofcertain requirements
under Ind AS for transition fiom the previous GAAP:

(i) Estimates
As per Ind AS l0l, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made

for the same date in accordance with previous CAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflecl any differences in accounting
policies.
As per Ind AS l0l, where application oflnd AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP,
those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date oftransition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at
the end ofthe comparative period (for presenting comparatiye information as per Ind AS).
Ind AS estimated as at 0l April 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition as these were not required under previous

GAAP:

-Fair valuation offinancial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income,
-Impairment of'financial assets based on expected credit loss model,
-D€t€rmination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, and

Upon the assessment ofthe estimate made under previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessity to revise such

estimates under Ind AS, other than those which are required due to application oflnd AS.

(ii) Derecognition of linancial assets and liabilities:
As per Ind AS 101 an entity should apply the recognition requirements in lnd AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for transaction
occuning after the date of transition to Ind AS However an entity may apply the derecognition requirements retrospectiyely from a date

chosen by it if the information need€d to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past

transaction were obtained at the tim€ ofinitially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provision oflnd AS l0l prospectively from the dale oftransition.

(iii) Classilication and measuremert of financial assets:

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to classiry and measure its financial assets into amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss or fair value

through other comprehensive income based on the business model assessment and solely payment ofprincipal and interest ("SPPI") criterion
based on facts and circumstances that €xist at the date oftransition. Further, the standard permits measurement offinancial assets accounted
at amortised cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date oftransition ifretospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of
transition. Measurement ofthe financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively,

C. Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS

The following reconciliations provides the effect oftransition to lnd AS ftom previous GAAP in accordance with Ind AS l0l :

l. Total equity as at I April 2021 and 3l March 2022

2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 3 I March 2022

t"
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Reconciliation ofequity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS
l). Total equity as at 3l March 2022 and I April 2021

Particulars
Notes

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Equity as reported utrdcr preyious GAAP
Ind AS adjustmerts
Fair value adjustments:

Effect ofrevenue recognition as per IND AS I l5
Cost adjustment as per IND AS I l5
Deferred tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments

Gratuity Impact

Bonowings Impact

IND AS I l6 - Impact

Mutual funds impact

Total 8djustmetrts
Total Equity under Ird AS

(0.7e)

(1,893. r 7)

|,983.44
(22.72)

(8e.5e)

(1,143.90)

t,266.50
(30.86)

(D

(r,
(vii)
(viii)
(iD
(iv)

67.55 91.7 4

66.',7 6 2.15

2). Total compr€hetrsive income reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2022

Particulars
Notes

As at
3l March 2022

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP

Ind AS adjustments
IndAS I l5- Revenue recognition

IND AS I l5- Cost adjustment

Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation
Bonowings Impact

Defened tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments

CWIP Impact

IND AS I 16 - Impact

Total adjustments

Net Profit after tax as per Ind AS
Other comprehensive income (net oftax)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

(D

(D

(viii)
(ii)

(vii)
(D

(iv)

(7 4e.27)

716.95

8.13

(2,l.le)

L

64.61

88.80

61.61
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D, \otes to Ind AS trxnsition

(i). Revenue from contracts ryith customers

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transfered to thc customer. The
performance obligation in relation to real estate der.elopment is satisfied upon completion ofproject work and transfer ofcontrol ofthe asset ro rhe

customer. Under prcvious GAAP Revenue is recognised as per the Revised Guidance Note issued by lnstitute ofChartered Accountants of lndia on
" Accounting for Real estate transactioN Eevised 2012)". As per which revenue is recognised ulder the percentage ofcompletion method.

(li). Borrowings
Under Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination ofborrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount ofborrowings on
initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the firance cost by
applying the ell'ective interest mcthod. Undcr prcvious GAAP, these transaction costs were chargcd to statement ofprolit and loss on straight-line
basis over the period ofloan.

(iii). Property, pltrnt and equipmert
Under previous GAAP, (i) Land and (ii) Buildings arc included as part of Property, plant and equipment. In accor&nce wilh Ind AS these are
classificd as investment properties. The management has determined that the investnent properties consist oftwo classes ofassets (i) Land and (ii)
Buildings based on the nature, characteristics afld risks ofeach property.

(iv). Leascs

Under the previous GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an operatiug or a finance lease based on lvhether or not *re lease tramferred substantjally all
risk and rewards incidental to the ownership ofan asset. Operating learie were expensed in the statement ofprofit and loss. Pursuant to application
of Ind AS - 116, for oper4ting lcases other thar those for rvhich ttre Compauy has opted for short-term or low value exemption, the Company has
recorded a right-of-use assets. Right-of-usc asset is amortised over the lease term or useful life of the leased assets whichever is lower and lease

liabilities is subsequently measured at amortised cost and ioterest expense is recognizcd.

(v).Investmcnts

The movement is relating to reclassification ofinvestments in quoted mutual funds from Cash and Cash equivalents to Short term Tnvestments and
the quoted iflvestments (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets. Under previous GAAP these were valued at
lower of cost and fair value.

(vi). Loans and other financial assets

Thc movcmcnt in othcr tinancial assets is arising mainly on aqi;ount of rcclassitioation of scourity dcposit trom non-currcnt to ROU assets as per

INDAS I 16. Utrder previous GAAP these werc accounted at cost.

(vii). Deferred taxes

Indian GAAP rcquircs deferled tax accounting using the itrcome statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and

accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requircs entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amouDt of an asset or tiability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12

approach has resulted in recognition of deferred ux on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition. dre

various tnnsitional adjustments lead to temporary differcnces.

(viii). Remeasurement ofpost employee benefits expense .

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan asset, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense

on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP. these

remeasurerneDts Nere forming part ofthe prcfit or loss for the year.

g-

The Compatry ha-s measured the light-of-use asset at the date of transition at irs carrying amou[t as if Ind AS - I 16 had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease and the lease liability is measured at present value of the remaining lea-se payments since the date of
commencement.



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statcments for the ) ear ended 3l March 2023
(All anounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

36. Rclatcd party trans.ctions

i. Names of related rties and nature of relationsh
Name ofthc related Party Nature ofRelationship

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidia es

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Suhsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidia es

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidia es

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Privale Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Casa Crande Grac€ Private Limited
Casa Interior Studio Pdvate Limited (Till 3l/0U2022)
Casa Grande Propcare Privale Limited (Till 3 t/01/2022)
Casagand Staylory Privale Limited
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Horizons Private Limited

Cazy Mag Private Limited
Casagrand Magick Rufy Private Limited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casa Gmnde Z€st Private Limited

C6sa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited
Casacrcnde Vistaaz P vale Limited
C&sa Grande Coimhatore l-l-P
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Crande Vallam LLP
Grace Gated Community LLP
Danub Homes Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP
Casa Crande Realtors LLP
Sky Magna LLP (Till FY 2020-21\

Casagand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Regale Privale Limited

Casagrand Dream Home Private Limited/ Casagrand Bizpark Privale Limited ( 10.01.2022)

Casagrand Spaceintell Private Limited

Upstay Builder Privare Limite.d (ftom 22/ l0 12021)

Casagrard Zingo Privale Limited (from 28/10/2021)

Casagrand Exotia Private Limited (from l0llll202l)
Casagrand Hydenvise Private Limited (tom 3lll2D02l\
Casagrand Everta Private Limited (from l0llll202l)
Casagrand Vivacity Private Limited (from 3/l l/2021)

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited (from 07/1212021)

Casagrand Fresh Privale Limited (ftorn 1410412021)

SHV LPG India Private Limited / Casagrand Magnum Private Limited (wef 22-02-2022)

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited (liom 26110/2021)

Casagrand Stage7 Private Limited (liom 29i04/2022)

Casagrand Perch Builder Private Limited (from 06105 12022)

Casagrand Beacon Private Limited (from 25106/2022)

Casagrand Lotus Privale Limited (ftom l6106/2022)

Caragrand Blue Horizon Private Limited (from 0610712022)

Exotia Builder Private LimiteA (ftom 07 /0'1 12022)

Flock Builder Private Limited (from 07/07/2022)

Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited (from 19/07 12022)

Casagrand Alphine Private Lirl,ited (frorn22/07 /2022)

Casagrand Astute Priv are Li(nited (ftotu 22/07 /2022)

Arun MN
Dorothy Thomas

t



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to Financial Stat€m€nts fdr the year endcd 3l March 2023
(Allamounts are in Millions, unless othetwise sta

Note : Related party relationships are as identified by the management.

ii. Transactions with the related parties

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023

As at

3l March 2022

Neme ofthe rclatcd Pert.' r\_ atu r€ of Rcla tio n sh i p

Blitskieg Technology Private Limited

Propel Holdings LLP
lris Development LLP
Blue Sea Homes Search LLP
UKR Agency Privare Limited (Till FY 2020.21)

Gallante Promoter LLP
Nobilitas Home Search LLP
Sea View Homes Search LLP
Solace Gated Community LLP
Venerate Homes Search LLP
Zest Homes Search LLP

Casagrand Supreme Home LLP

AAK Realty Service LLP

Arun Hope Foundation

Casagrand Brightkids Private Limited
Syona Cosmetics Private Limited.
Cheogalpattu Warchousing Pa*s Private Limited

Thinksai Software Private Limited (Till FY 2021-22)

Arun Family Trusteeship LLP
Casagrand Arun MN Academy Foundation

Casa Interior Studio Private Limited (From 0l/02/2022)
Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited (From 0l/02n022)
Casagand Starpa* Private Limited

Casagand Luxor Privale Limited

Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Private Limited

Entities in which key manaSement

personnel exercise signifi cant infl uence

a) Interest experses

Casa Gmnde Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Enginoering Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Privale Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Vallarn LLP

Casa Grande Zest Privare Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Horizons Private Limitcd

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

Casa$and vistaaz Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

b) Interest lncome

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagand Builder P vate Limited)

Aak Realty Services LLP

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Grac8 Private Limited

Casa Grarde Milestone Private Limited

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Zest Privato Limited

Casagrand Dream Home Private Limited (CasagraJrd Bizpark Private Limited w.E.F.l0 0l'2022)

Casagrand Luxor Private Limited

Casagrand Vivaace Privale Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Grace Gated Community LLP
L

9.89

1,38

0.04

0.06

10.50

33.13

0.01

2.86

8.13

0.01

0.00

0.3 8

0.04

0.02

4.58

2.55

0.76

0.05

9.38

l.l7
0.01

3.63

0.03

0.01

30.16

0.00

0.85

5.93

3.84

0.08



Crsagrand Millenia Prival€ Limit€d
Notes to Financirl Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otheryise stated)

c) Advertisement Expenses

Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

d) Facilig & l\lanagemcnt exp

Casa Grande Propcarc Private Limited

e) Reimbursemcnt expenses

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

g) Loan Given

Casa Grarde Civil Engineering Privale Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Dawning D€velopers LLP

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Crac€ Privale Limited

Casa Interior Studio Privale Limited

Casa Crande Sheher LLP

AAK Realty Servic€s LLP

Casa Gmrde Z€st Privale Limited

Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limitod

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casa$and Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Magick Rufr Private Limited

Casa$and Vistaaz Private Limiled

Danub Homes Privale Limited

lris Development LLP

h) Loan Reccivcd

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privale Limited

Casa Grand€ Realtors LLP

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Privale Limited)

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Iris Development LLP

AAK Realty Servic€s LLP

Danub Homes Prival€ Limited

Casa Graode Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Graode Milestone Private Limited

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Crande Zest Private Limited

Casagrand Dream Home Privae Limited (Casagmnd Bizpa* Privale Limited W.E.F.10.01.2022)

Casagrand Luxor Privale Limited

Casagrand Vivaac.e Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Gmce Galed Corununity LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

i) Interest cost

Casa$and Vistaaz Private Limited

45.8 r

0.03

268.69

140.31

0.82

0.10

19.82

4.89

606.64

3.71

25.34

294.46

14'7.58

0.10

l.l5
0.19

1.45

0.02

0.l l
185.43

0.03

2.30

1.69

0.03

231.09

1.63
't27 .23

2.51

15.73

49.51

0.10

l.ll
r8.06

168.88

0.23

0.23

0.15

3.55

140.05

0.16

0.41

0.02

0.01

3.59

3.27

0.32
[R{N

Vila! M
Towe

RKM
ts 1249

(r

DAcc

e

f) Rccovery ofExpenses

Casagand Vistaaz Private Limited

5.02



Casagrand Millenia Privste Limited
Notes to Finsnci.l Statements for th€ year end€d 3l March 2023
(All amounls arc in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

iii. Balances outstanding at the erd ofthe yesr

Particulsrs
As at

3l March 2023

As at

3l March2022
r) Short-term borrowings
Casagrand Premier Builder Privale Limiled (Formerly known as Casag.and Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Vistaaz Privale Limited
Iris Development LLP
Casagrand Magick Rury Privale Limiled

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Danub Homes Privale Limited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes P vate Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

Casa Grande Milestone Privale Limited

Casa Grande Vallarn LLP

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

b) Trade Pryables

Casa Cnande Propcare Private Limited

Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

c) Short term Loans and advances

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

AAK Realty Services LLP

Casagrand Magick Rufy Private Limited

Iris Development LLP

Danub Homes Privale Limit€d

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Zest Private Limited

Dawning Developen LLP

d) Share capital

Casagand Premier Builder Privale Limited (Formerly known as Casagrard Builder Private Limited)

e) Interest receivrble

Crace Gated Community LLP

AAK Realty Servic€s LLP

Casa Grande Gracc Privae Limite.d

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited

Casag.and Luxor Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Privale Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa$and Dream Home Private Limited/ Casagand Bizpark Private Limited (10.01.2022)

357.08

225.10

0.23

l.l6
101 .10

0.23

0.04

0.20

24.29

0.20

82.84

0.02

15.50

0.10

0.10

0.24

0.75

0.85

0.98

0.01

1.38

0. l0

0.15

620.73

0.14

1.49

0.l0
0.03

1 .23

0.10

t32.90

0.03

0.26

0.06

0.50

7.68

1.38

46.93

2.32

0.59

0.02

0.08

.FRAA

0.05

1.57

0.24

0.01

t.66
0.45

1.77

30.16

0.9s

9.89

393.99

65.75

0 Interst Psyablc

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engine€ring Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Zest Privato Limitcd

Dalub Homes Privale Limited

Casa$and Magick Rufy Private Irimited

Casa CBnde Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casagand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casa$and Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

36.37

0.04

10.50



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

37. Commitmetrts and colltiItgetrcies
(a) Commitmcnts

Estimated amounts ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (31 March 2023 - Nil ; 31 March 2022 - Nil)

(b) Contingetrt liobility
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts;

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023
As et

3l March 2022
Income tax

Other matters* 14.34
14.31

Note - +It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, ifany, in respect of aboye matters pending resolution of
the respective proceedings.

hRAN,

Yilas tfan i13
Iower, i

RY.','.

D.1C

L



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

38, Segm€nt reportirg

The Group is into the business ofreal estate development hence segment reporting as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable

39. Ratio analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at 31

March 2023

As at 3l
March 2022

Variance (7o)

2023 vs 2022 2023 vs 2022

Current ratio

Debt- Equiry Ratio

Debt Service

Coverage ratio

Return on Equity
ratio

Trade Receivable

TumoYer Ratio

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Net Capital
Turnover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Retum on Capital
Employed

Retum on

Investment

Current Assets

Total Debt

Eamings for debt

service = Net profit
after ta\es + Finance

Cost + Non-cash

operating expenses

Net Profits after taxes -
Preference Dividend

Cost ofgoods sold

Net credit sales = Gross

credit sales - sales

refurn

Net credit purchases :
Gross credit purchases -
purchase return

Net sales = Total sales -

sales return

Net Profit

Eamings before interest

and taxes

lnterest (Finance

lncome)

Cunent Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Debt service : Interest

& Lease Payments +

Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's
Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade

Receivable

Average Trade

Payables

Working capital =

Current assets - Current
liabilities

Net sales : Total sales .

sales return

Capital Employed =

Tangible Net Worth +

Total Debt + Defened

Tax Liability

InYestment

0.7 |

-0.64

0.3 5

-0.41

0.92.

t3.4

2.5

-2.51

0.09

-1.03

NA

0.87

18.32

0.I

1.88

0.16

3.66

2.19

-0.7 4

0.16

0.07

0.00

-t839%

-103.49%

250.00%

-t25.00%

4'15.00%

266.12%

t4.t6%

239.19%

-43.7 5%

-t5'7 | .43%

NA

(D

(ii)

(iiD

(iv)

(u)

g

Reason for
change

Inventory Turnover
ratio

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)



Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

Notes to Firancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise slqted)

Explanation for Variance in ratios by more thrn 25yo
l. March 2023 Ys March 2022

i) Decrease in Debl- Equity Ratio is due to reduction in shareholder's equity during the year

ii) Increase in Debt Service Coverage ratio is due to higher profit during the year

iii) Decrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to reduction in average shareholder's equity

iv) Increase in Inventory Tumover ratio is due to increase in purchases during the year

v) Increase in Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio is due to increase in sales during the year

vi) Increase in Net Capital Tumover Ratio is due to increase sales during the year

vii) Decrease in Net Profit ratio is due to reduction in profit margin

viii) Decrease in Retum on Capital Employed is due to decrease in capital employed

40. Other statutory informhtion

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for holding
any Benami property.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crpto cunency or Virtual Cunency during the financial year

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities
(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mamer whatsoever by or on behalfofThe Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, secu ty or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund fiom any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, secufity or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 196l (such as, search or suwey or any other relevant provisions

ofthe Income Tax Act, l96l

41. Expenditure in foreign currency

The company has not made any expenditure in foreign currency

,r

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

,
Ytlas Ma



Casagr{nd Millenia Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All atuounts arc in Millions, unless olheneise staled)

42. Code on Social Securitv

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will
comc into eflcct has not been notified and the tinal rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company rvill assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

As per our report ofeven date
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